

A G E N D A CITY OF WAUPUN BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT MEETING

Waupun City Hall – 201 E. Main Street, Waupun WI Wednesday, September 11, 2019 at 7:00 AM

Call to order

Roll Call of Board Members

Public Comment – State name, address, and subject of comments (2 minutes).

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING AGENDA ITEMS:

- 1. Approval of August 14, 2019 Minutes
- 2. August Financial Statement Review

PRIOR OUTSTANDING APPLICATIONS: (if expired, possible extension or cancellation)

3. Tana Barsch, Our Bar- 433 E. Main St.

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

- 4. BID Operating Plan Update
- 5. Review of Ordinances Pertaining to the BID
- 6. Waupun Area Chamber of Commerce Update
- 7. Administrator Update

ADVANCED PLANNING:

- 8. Possible Future Agenda Items
- 9. Date of Next Scheduled Meeting (October 9, 2019)

ADJOURNMENT

Sarah Van Buren, Community & Economic Dev. Coordinator

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information, contact the City Clerk at 920-324-7915.



M I N U T E S CITY OF WAUPUN BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT MEETING Waupun City Hall – 201 E. Main Street, Waupun WI Wednesday, August 14, 2019 at 7:00 AM

Committee Members Present:

Krista Bishop

Gary DeJager

Jan Harmsen

John Karsten

Rich Matravers

Teresa Ruch

Committee Members Absent:

Jack Dunham

JohnTheune

Al Verhage

Tyler Schulz

Bob Barsch

Staff Present:

Kathy Schlieve	Administrator
•	Community & Economic Development Coordinator
	,
Audience Present:	
Tana Barsch	Our Bar

Call to Order

Chair Bishop called the meeting to order at 7:01 a.m.

Roll Call of Board Members

Roll call and quorum determined.

Public Comment

None.

1. Approval of Consent Agenda

- A. Approval of July 10, 2019 Minutes
 - I. A motion to approve the July 10, 2019 minutes was made by Mr. Matravers and seconded by Mr. Karsten, passing unanimously.

......Our Bar

- B. July Financial Statement
 - I. A motion to approve the July financial statement was made by Ms. Harmsen and seconded by Mr. DeJager, passing unanimously.

2. New applications for Review and Consideration

A. Tana Barsch, Our Bar, submitted a Façade Improvement Program application for the property located at 433 E. Main St. for the installation of new sleeves to reflect the new logo on the signage. The total project cost is \$2,610.18. Staff recommends approval. Motion made by Mr. Karsten and seconded by Mr. Matravers to approve 50% of the total project cost, not to exceed \$1,305.09, passing unanimously.

3. Discussion Items

- A. Recap of July 2019 Visioning Session with Errin Welty
 - I. Ms. Van Buren and members of the BID provided a summary of the discussion and activities that came out of the session facilitated by Ms. Welty, Downtown Development Program Manager at WEDC. The discussion will assist both the BID and CDA in setting priorities for the upcoming year. A summary will be included in the agenda packet for next month's meeting.
 - II. Members of the board who attended the visioning session also gave their impressions of the event

B. Update on 2020 Operational Plan

- I. Ms. Van Buren stated the discussion from the visioning session with Ms. Welty would provide the framework for the development of the 2020 Operating Plan and budget. Ms. Ruch, Ms. Despres, Mr. DeJager volunteered to assist with the development of the 2020 Operating Plan and budget. Rohn Bishop has confirmed that he would like to continue being involved from the property owner perspective. Ms. Van Buren will work with these members to identify a date to meet and the draft 2020 Operating Plan will be presented at a future BID meeting.
- II. Ms. Bishop would like to have this small group meet prior to the September meeting so the draft document can be on the agenda for discussion by the larger group.

C. Chamber of Commerce Update

In the absence of Ms. Despres, Administrator Schlieve stated the Chamber is seeking an outside facilitator to help with strategic visioning. She will make sure there is a voice from the BID when this activity occurs.

D. Administrator Report

- I. A historic tax credit workshop was held on July 15, 2019 with about 10 attendees. City staff is still waiting to hear back on the status of the National Historic Commercial District designation. Staff is also currently researching becoming a certified local government that will open the City up to additional funding opportunities.
- II. An update was provided regarding transitions occurring in the downtown. Currently there are nine commercial building are for sale. Staff is researching creating an entrepreneurial pop-up program in 2020 based on what other communities in the state have done.
- III. An update on the streetscaping efforts in downtown were discussed. The mural has been installed but due to construction installation of other streetscaping, elements have been delayed due to construction. Tweaks are also being made to the banners due to the recent historic district designation. Next year additional elements like a self-serve visitor kiosk, and its placement, will be considered.
- IV. There is been a lot of discussion regarding regional economic development partnerships. Currently the City is aligned with Envision Greater Fond du Lac, but staff is also looking to see if alignment with MadRep or Thrive makes better sense.
- V. At the August 13, 2019 Council meeting, a contract with Cedar Corporation was approved to conduct a housing study and needs analysis. As part of their work, input will be sought from business

- stakeholders to give the City a better sense of workforce housing needs.
- VI. Dodge County will be applying for grants to help with broadband expansion.
- VII. A mill and overly will be impacting portions of Brandon Street, Edgewood, Fond du Lac Street, and Jefferson. It is anticipated to be completed by early fall.

4. Advanced Planning

- A. Possible future agenda items
 - I. New application(s), if any
 - II. Establish a direction for the BID through update of the Operational Plan
 - III. Review of ordinances pertaining to the BID
- B. Date of next schedule meeting
 - I. The next meeting is scheduled for September 11, 2019

5. Adjourn

The motion to adjourn was made by Ms. Harmsen and seconded by Mr. DeJager, passing unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 7:46.a.m.



Business Improvement District Financial Statement For the Month Ending: 08/31/19

CASH ON HAND						
Prior Month Ending	Balance		\$	11,597.28		
Plus Current Month			\$	-		
Less Current Month	·			(445.00)		
Total Cash on Hand	ZAPENISES		\$ \$	11,152.28	_	
				,	=	
BUILDING IMPROV	EMENT GRANT EXPEN	SES				
2019 Budget			\$	12,912.35		
Plus Carryover of Pr	ior Year Funds		\$	3,106.82		
Less Approved Gran			\$	(6,968.00)	_	
Grant Funds Availab	le for Distribution		\$	9,051.17	=	
Approved Grants:						
Date Approved	Expiration Date	Applicant Name	Grant	Amount	Date Paid	Check #
11/14/2018	2/14/2019	Liebenow Construction LLC	\$		02/07/19	496
1/9/2019	4/15/2019	Fox Computer & Networking	\$	•	03/18/19	497
4/10/2019	7/10/2019	Mateo's Café and Restaurant	\$		6/4/2019	498
6/12/2019	9/15/2019	Q-Tronics	\$		8/16/2019	502
7/15/2019	N/A	VanBuren, Sarah-reimbursement	\$		7/15/2019	501
7/10/2019	10/10/2019	Weaving It Up To You	\$		8/26/2019	503
8/14/2019	11/14/2019	Our Bar	\$	1,305.09	5, 25, 2515	200
5/11/2015	11, 11, 2013		\$	-,505.05		
		Total Approved Grants		6,968.00	_	
BEAUTIFICATION EX	KPENSES					
2019 Budget			\$	1,500.00		
Less Year-to-Date Expense			\$	(991.48)		
Beautification Funds Available for Distribution		\$	508.52	=		
Seadineadon i and	o. Wanasie for Distribu		-	300.32	=	
Beautification Expe						
<u>Date Issued</u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u>Description</u>		nt Paid	Check #	
6/11/2019	Farm & Home	Flowers	\$	361.48		
7/8/2019	City of Waupun	Waupun Florist-Planters	\$	630.00	500	
			\$	-	_	
		Total Beautification Expense	e \$	991.48		
MARKETING & PRO	MOTION EXPENSES					
2019 Budget			\$	2,500.00		
Less Year-to-Date E	xpense		\$	(2,500.00)		
	tion Funds Available fo	or Distribution	\$	-	- =	
Marketing & Promo	tion Expense Details:					
Date Issued	Vendor	<u>Description</u>	ΔΜΟΙΙ	nt Paid	Check #	
1/31/2019	Waupun Econ Dev	Connect Communities/Ignite	\$	2,000.00	·	
1/31/2019	Waupun Chamber	Advertisement	\$ \$	500.00		
1/31/2013	waupun Chambel	Total Marketing & Promo Expense		2,500.00		
		Total Marketing & Promo Expense	ε Ş	۷,500.00		

	T				
Initiative	Timeframe	Cost	Assigned to	Other Involvement	Measurables
Objective 1: Be a voice for the Downtown Waupun community (Organization)				-	-
Strategy 1: Communicate and solicit feedback from our members					
1 Review and update of Operational Plan	Summer	\$0	City	BID Board	Updated Plan
2 Serve as main contact for downtown concerns and solutions	ongoing	\$0	City	Bid Board	Complete as needed
Strategy 2: Staff and Board Development					
Recruit, develop, and engage board members	ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board	
Recruit, orient, and train new board members, when applicable	ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board	Complete training, as needed
5 Attend training workshops and seminars as appropriate and required	ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board	Completed courses; report to board new ideas learned.
Strategy 3: Raise the profile of the Business Improvement District					
6 Host an annual meeting and publish an annual report, as defined by state statute	February	\$0	City	BID Board	Number of attendees and feedback on report
Objective 2: Positively market Downtown Waupun (Promotion)					
Strategy 1: Utilize various marketing methods to attract customers with disposable income					
7 Implement the latest social media trends	ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board, Waupun Area Chamber of Commerce	Implementation
Strategy 2: Market special events that will be a regional tourist draw and will create local economic impact					
Saturday Farmer's Market, Halloween on Main, Wine Walk, Avenue of Angels.	ongoing	\$0	City	Various event committees	Increase in attendance, participation,and economic impact
Promote local events such as parades, concerts and classes which take place in the downtown district.	ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board	Improved open rate; Increase in Facebook reach
Objective 3: Improve the aesthetic/visual appeal of Downtown Waupun (Design)					
Strategy 1: Work to assist property owners in renovation projects					
Continue to educate property owners on various financial assistance programs to encourage property redevelopment.	ongoing	\$0	City	IGNITE	Usage of programs
Strategy 2: Assist with maintaining a downtown environment that is clean, safe, comfortable and welcoming					
Continue partnership with the Fond du Lac Police, the Building Inspector, and the Department of Public Works to manage safety, parking, and aesthetic issues	ongoing	\$0	City	Police, Building Inspector, DPW	Complete as issues arise
Strategy 3: Suppport the implementation of elements from the Streetscaping Plan, including amenities that are vis	ually consistent	and cohes	ive in design with	n the rest of the downtown di	strict.
Continue to support the Downtown Design Guidelines and the Community Development Authority to bring design 12 consistency to the district	ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board and CDA	Current city ordinances to support
Continue the Main Street and Side Street Planter Program 13	May	\$1,500	City	City; Farm and Home, Rens, WAHS Horticulture Students	Beautiful planters
14 Installation of new banners, benches, and trash recepticles	Major push in spring, then ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board and CDA	New initiatives being implemented

Objective 4: Attract, retain, and facilitate development of a unique mix of sustainable businesses in	coordination	with the	City and CDA	(Economic Vitality)	
Strategy 1: Create, promote and implement financial assistance programs					
15 Work with property owners to apply, evaluate, and award Façade Improvement Grants	ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board	Number of inquiries and applications
16 Inform potential business and property owners on available incentive programs	ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board and Envision Greater Fond du Lac	Number of inquiries
Educate and keep relationships with realtors, lenders, property owners and other economic development agencies on financial programs	ongoing	\$0	City	Envision Greater Fond du Lac	Number of contacts
Strategy 2: Work to retain downtown businesses					
Maintain a business retention program meet with property/business owners. Identify businesses with expansion plans or succession planning needs.	ongoing	\$0	City	Waupun Area Chamber of Commerce and Envision Greater Fond du Lac	Meetings and follow thru reporting
Strategy 3: Work to attract new downtown businesses					
Develop a market analysis to actively pursue businesses in demand and recruit to fill current vacant properties.	ongoing	\$0	City	BID Board and CDA	Number of inquiries, vacancy rate
20 Follow up on leads of businesses looking to open, expand or relocate	ongoing	\$0	City	Envision Greater Fond du	Number of contacts
21 Continue to be an organizational partner in IGNITE! Business Success	ongoing	\$0	City	Lac IGNITE Partner organizations	
22 Develop and implement a pop-up grant program	ongoing	\$3,000	City	IGNITE Partner organizations	

CHAPTER 25 - CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES (Cr. #07-09)

25.01	General Purpose
25.02	Signs
25.03	Facades
25.04	Outdoor Furniture
25.05	Parking
25.06	Conditional Use Permit; Abrogation and Greater Restrictions

25.01 - GENERAL PURPOSE.

It is the general intent of the Waupun Common Council and the Community Development Authority (CDA) to renovate, preserve and maintain properties within the Central Business District (CBD) through a process of design guidelines in order to:

- (1) Encourage urban design and uniformity.
- (2) Integrate urban design and preservation of Waupun's heritage into the process of redevelopment and revitalization.
- (3) Enhance the character of the Waupun downtown business community.

This chapter shall be liberally construed to effectuate this purpose.

25.02 - SIGNS.

- (1) PURPOSE. The purpose of this subsection is to regulate, standardize, and enforce outdoor sign advertising and display in the Waupun Central Business District. This subsection is intended to promote the effective use of signs as a means to communicate, maintain, and enhance the aesthetic value of the Central Business District; promote pedestrian and vehicular safety; protect property values; and provide fair and consistent enforcement.
- (2) DEFINTIONS. The following terms have the meanings indicated:
 - (a) <u>Abandoned Sign</u>: Any sign of a business or building owner that is no longer in use or is in a state of disrepair.
 - (b) <u>Business Identification Sign</u>: Any sign that displays the name, address, slogan, logo, or emblem of a particular business.

- (c) <u>Canopy/Awning</u>: A protective roof-like covering, often of canvas, mounted on a frame over a walkway or door.
- (d) <u>Central Business District</u>: The Central Business District includes parcels zoned B-2 and designated as the Central Business District in §16.04(2) of the Waupun Municipal Code.
- (e) Nonconforming Sign: Any sign that does not comply with City of Waupun Municipal Code §§25.02, 13.41, 16.11, or any other State or Municipal Statute, ordinance or regulation pertaining to signs.
- (f) <u>Permanent Sign</u>: Any sign that is displayed for the intent of advertising for more than 30 consecutive days.
- (g) <u>Projection Sign</u>: Any wall sign that protrudes more than 4 inches from the exterior wall of a building.
- (h) <u>Sandwich Board Sign</u>: Any freestanding sign with an A-frame shape and messages on at least 2 sides that is generally placed on a sidewalk in close proximity to the business making use of it.
- (i) <u>Temporary Sign</u>: Any sign that is displayed with the intention of advertising for not more than 30 consecutive days in any calendar year.
- (j) <u>Wall Sign</u>: Any sign mounted or otherwise attached to any one of the outside structural walls of a building.
- (k) <u>Weatherproof</u>: Material capable of withstanding exposure to all types of repeated weather conditions.
- (I) <u>Window Sign</u>: Any sign of permanent or temporary nature displayed in any exterior window of a building.
- (m) <u>Banner</u>: Any sign of lightweight fabric or similar material that is mounted to a building. Banners are permitted for seasonal events, sales, special events, and other similar uses provided such banners are removed within three days following the event, sale, special event, or similar use.
- (3) NONCONFORMING SIGNS. Signs in existence prior to the adoption of this chapter and not considered abandoned shall be deemed lawful nonconforming signs. If signs deemed nonconforming are relocated or reconstructed then they shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter.
- (4) ABANDONED SIGNS. The following restrictions shall apply to all signs located within the Central Business District:
 - (a) Any sign in the Central Business District that advertises or identifies a business or similar activity must be removed within 60 days of the date this business ceases operation or vacates the premises, or the activity ceases. Any sign shall also be removed when it becomes so old, dilapidated or in disrepair as to be unsafe or unsightly.
 - (b) Sign removal shall be the responsibility of the owner of the property on which it is located. If the owner fails to timely remove signs as required here, the City of Waupun shall give the owner of the building 30 days' written notice thereof, and on the owner's failure to comply with this notice the City of Waupun may cause removal to be executed, the expenses of which shall be assessed to the tax roll of the property on which the abandoned sign is located.

- (5) WALL SIGNS. The following restrictions shall apply to wall signs located within the Central Business District:
 - (a) Each business shall be permitted one externally mounted permanent sign on the main floor of the building, except that any building located on a corner lot shall be permitted 2 externally mounted permanent signs on the main floor of the building, one sign facing each thoroughfare.
 - (b) Wall signs shall not exceed 10% of the building's exterior facade or one square foot per foot of frontage of building, whichever is less.
 - (c) Wall signs shall be located above the first floor windows and doors but below second story window sill.
 - (d) Second story wall signs shall not exceed 8 square feet in area.
 - (e) Wall signs shall be used solely for identification of the business name, services provided and/or available products.
 - (f) Wall signs shall not physically diminish the architectural quality or structure of the building to which they are attached.
 - (g) Projection signs are prohibited.
 - (h) Wall signs of a temporary nature such as business identification banners shall be displayed for a period no more than 45 days, prior to affixing the permanent business signage.
- (6) WINDOW SIGNS. Within the Central Business District, permanent or temporary signs displayed in or on exterior windows shall not cover more than 50% of the window surface. Window signs may be illuminated, but are subject to City of Waupun Municipal Ordinances §16.11.
- (7) SANDWICH BOARD SIGNS. The following restrictions shall apply to sandwich board signs located within the Central Business District:
 - (a) No more than one sandwich board sign shall be permitted per property, unless on a corner lot in which case 2 such signs shall be permitted, one on each sidewalk along each thoroughfare.
 - (b) Sandwich board signs shall be not greater than 2 feet in width and 4 feet in height. Height is measured from ground level to the peak of the sign. Width is measured from the farthest outside edge of the surface area to the opposite outside edge of the surface area.
 - (c) Sandwich board signs shall allow for a minimum of 2½ feet of unhindered sidewalk between the inside edge of the sign and the building exterior wall and 2½ feet of unhindered sidewalk between the outside edge of the sign and the outermost portion of curb directly parallel to the sign. Overall, it shall not take up more than one-quarter of the sidewalk width.
 - (d) Sandwich boards shall not be placed so as to extend beyond the property lines on either side of the property to which they apply.
 - (e) Sandwich board signs shall contain no more than 2 sides each on which different messages may appear. Message lettering shall be neat, orderly, and visually attractive.
 - (f) Sandwich board signs shall be made of durable weatherproof material.
 - (g) Lighting is not permitted on sandwich board signs.

- (h) Sandwich board signs shall not be attached to any public property or fixture owned by the City of Waupun.
- [(i) Reserved.]
- (j) Sandwich board signs shall only be displayed during business hours of the business to which they apply. If established business hours permit sandwich board signs to remain after dusk, then such signs shall be placed in a well-lit area for pedestrian safety.
- (8) CANOPIES/AWNINGS. The following restrictions shall apply to canopies and awnings located within the Central Business District:
 - (a) Canopies and awnings shall have a minimum ground level clearance of 7 feet 6 inches.
 - (b) Canopies and awnings shall not project more than 6 feet from the building's exterior wall.
 - (c) Canopies and awnings shall project a minimum of 3 feet from the exterior wall of the building, but shall not extend closer than 2 feet from any sidewalk curbing.
 - (d) Canopies and awnings shall be well maintained and shall be made of fire-resistant material.
 - (e) Words or graphics displayed on any canopy or awning shall not exceed 16 square feet in overall surface area.

(Ord. No. 13-05, §§ 1, 2, 10-8-2013)

25.03 - FACADE.

- (1) PURPOSE. The purpose of this subsection is to promote uniformity and overall aesthetically pleasing facades of the buildings located in the Central Business District for the City of Waupun. The following restrictions shall apply to facades for all buildings located within the Central Business District:
- (2) WINDOWS. The following restrictions shall apply to windows in need of substantial repair and all window replacement for buildings located within the Central Business District:
 - (a) New windows shall reflect the design and overall theme of the Central Business District.
 - (b) Windows that have been blocked or screened by concrete or other materials shall be reopened to reestablish the intent of the original facade.
 - (c) Windows shall be kept clean and free of obstruction.
 - (d) Broken windows shall be repaired or replaced in a reasonable period of time, not to exceed 21 days. If repair or replacement is not timely made, the City may initiate such repairs, the cost of which shall be assessed to the tax roll of the applicable property.
- (3) ELECTRICAL HARDWARE AND WIRING. Electrical hardware and wiring for all buildings located in the Central Business District shall be covered and positioned in a manner that is safe and as aesthetically pleasing as practicable.
 - (a) Electrical wiring shall be bundled when possible to eliminate mess and hazard when hanging in front or down the side of businesses.
 - (b) Electrical hardware on the exterior walls of buildings shall be covered in an appropriate manner as to avoid injury and accident.

- (c) Due to the possible danger that electrical hardware may pose to residents and property, all electrical hardware is subject to this chapter, regardless of whether preexisting. All electrical hardware not conforming to this amendment at the time of its adoption will be subject to sanctions if not corrected within 30 days of passage of this chapter.
- (4) BUILDING NUMBERING. All new building numbering should be done in a manner to promote uniformity throughout the Waupun Central Business District. All new building numbering shall be displayed on the main entrance to the building. Numbers shall be block styled, bold, black, and have a 3-inch minimum size.

(5) EXTERIOR WALLS AND MURALS.

- (a) All exterior walls shall be maintained in an effort to promote the historical theme of the Waupun Central Business District.
- (b) Any additions to exterior walls or the installation of new exterior walls within the Central Business District shall be constructed in a manner that coincides with the surrounding architecture. Plans for substantial remodeling of building facades shall be approved by the Community Development Authority prior to construction.
- (c) Plans regarding murals on business exterior walls shall be approved by the Waupun Community Development Authority prior to mural installation, placement or painting. Mural size, color scheme and theme shall be approved by the Community Development Authority on a case-by-case basis.
- (6) EXTERIOR MATERIALS AND COLOR. Exterior building materials for facades in the Central Business District shall be complimentary to a building's original materials as well as those of adjacent buildings.
 - (a) Brick, stone, and decorative concrete block are preferred and recommended for all exterior facade repair and rehabilitation. When repairing brick exterior care shall be taken to match appropriate size, color and texture to existing brick exterior.
 - (b) Colors that are considered earth tone, natural, and terra cotta are the preferred choices for brick or stone exteriors. All other materials for prospective projects shall be approved by the Community Development Authority prior to construction.
 - (c) Use of false-brick veneer, vinyl or aluminum siding is prohibited on the ground level and may only be used for second story and third story improvements with prior approval from the Community Development Authority. Other materials made to either imitate exterior finish materials or used to cover original architectural features are also prohibited unless otherwise approved by the Community Development Authority.
 - (d) Paint shall be used only on surfaces intended for paint application including wood, etc. Paint shall compliment the colors of existing materials on the facade such as brick and stone.

25.04 - OUTDOOR FURNITURE.

Furnishings purchased through the Community Development Authority or City of Waupun pursuant to grants, donations, et cetera remain the property of the City of Waupun. Such items shall include without limitation: benches, bicycle racks, flowerpots, tree tubs, urns, and lighting fixtures. The City shall be responsible for maintenance, pickup, and removal of these furnishings at appropriate times. On a case-by-case basis and only with a business owner consensual agreement between the business owner and Community Development Authority, local business owners may be responsible for daily upkeep of

plants, trees, shrubbery and other maintenance. Unless otherwise noted, City of Waupun shall maintain all furnishings acquired for the express purpose of downtown revitalization.

25.05 - PARKING AND PARKING LOTS .

The following subsection shall apply to parking lots located in the Central Business District that are not under ownership of the City of Waupun:

- (1) Parking lots or areas in the Central Business District shall be maintained by the property owner of such parking area. Parking areas shall be free from any detriment that may endanger public safety or personal property.
- (2) Parking areas shall be properly lit from the time period directly following dusk until the closure of the business served by the parking area. Lighting shall not be required if hours of business are concluded before dusk.
- (3) Trash receptacles, dumpsters, storage bins and other containers located in parking areas shall be confined to specified areas and shall remain secured and closed at all times to insure public health and safety.

25.06 - CONDITIONAL USE; ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.

- (1) Any provision contained in this chapter may be conditionally amended by the Community Development Authority as to any property located within the Central Business District, on application by the property owner. In considering whether to grant such application, the Community Development Authority shall give due consideration to the purpose of this chapter as stated in §25.01 above. In granting such conditional use, the Community Development Authority may impose reasonable restrictions it considers appropriate in carrying out the purposes of this chapter.
- (2) The enactment of this chapter is not intended to repeal, abrogate or impair any existing state or municipal statute, ordinance or regulation. In the event this chapter conflicts with any other provisions of this Code, easement, covenant or deed restriction, the more stringent restriction shall apply.